
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 
 Please reply to:  

Contact: Karen Wyeth 
Service: Corporate Governance 
Direct line: 01784 446240 
E-mail: k.wyeth@spelthorne.gov.uk 
Date: 30 July 2021 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Development Sub-Committee  
 
 

Date: 

 

Monday, 9 August 2021 

Time: 

 

11.00 am 

Place: 

 

Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames, TW18 1XB 

 
Committee Service 

The members of the Committee 

J.T.F. Doran 

H. Harvey 

L. E. Nichols 

R.J. Noble 

R.A. Smith-Ainsley 
 
 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

 AGENDA  

  Page nos. 

1.   Apologies for absence  

 To receive any apologies for non-attendance. 
 

 

2.   Minutes To Follow 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 26 
July 2021 – to follow. 
 

 

3.   Disclosures of Interest  

 To receive any disclosures of interest from members in accordance with 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

4.   Council Developments  

 To consider the six propositions put forward by Councillor Nichols 
relating to Council developments. 
 

 

5.   Annual Report (Investments) 5 - 48 

 To note the annual commercial property report for the year ending 31 
March 2021 and agree to publicise on the Council’s website. 
 

 

6.   Laleham Pavillion 49 - 52 

 To consider approval of the demolition of Laleham Park Pavilion and 
WC amenity block in September/October 2021. 
 

 

7.   Investment & Regeneration Portfolio - Annual Business Plans 53 - 64 

 To consider approval of the proposed template for the annual business 
plans which are being produced for all assets in the Investment & 
Regeneration portfolios, and to note the proposed timescale of 
completion of this project by 20th August subject to Committee being 
comfortable with the format of the reports. 
 

 

8.   Development project update  

 To receive an update from the Group Head, Regeneration and Growth, 
on development projects.  
 

 

9.   Exclusion of Public and Press (Exempt Business)  

 To move the exclusion of the Press/Public for the following items, in 
view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the meaning of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended 
by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and by the 
Local Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006. 

 



 
 

 

 

10.   World Business Centre 4, Heathrow - Annual Business Plan 
2021/22 

65 - 72 

 To note the forecast income and expenditure from WBC 4, Heathrow 
over the next five-year period and to note the proposed asset 
management initiatives. 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Version: 1, Last saved: 30/07/21 17:30 

Development Sub-Committee  

 

9 August  2021 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 With a portfolio of nearly £1bn the Council clearly needs to set out in a 
transparent way (as any other major institutional investor would) the 
performance of the portfolio over the preceding year. This Annual Investment 
Report 2021 seeks to do that (Appendix 1).  

1.2 It is divided into various sections (1) property market overview (2) portfolio 
valuation (3) key performance indicators (4) investment activity (5) Investment 
portfolio activity (6) Regeneration portfolio activity (7) asset profiles of each of 
our assets including a short summary of the Councils asset strategy for each 
building.  

1.3 The report reflects the COVID-19 pandemic which began in March 2020 and 
still continue to be felt, including  the impact that this has had on our portfolio 
and the wider property market. These impacts were also specifically covered 
and referenced in the annual valuation report undertaken by Carter Jonas on 
behalf of the Council which fed into this report.  

Title Annual Commercial Property Report for Financial Year 20/21 

Purpose of the report To note 

Report Author Katherine McIlroy, Property Manager 

Ward(s) Affected Not applicable 

 

Exempt No   

Exemption Reason  

Corporate Priority Financial Sustainability 

 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

Note the Annual Commercial Property Report for the year ending 
31 March 2021. 

Agree that it is put on the Councils website  

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

The Annual Investment Report 2021 sets out a picture of our 
investment and regeneration assets as at the end of the financial 
year March 2021.  

The report ensures there is full transparency around the portfolio 
and its performance. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
 

1.4 There is a lot of detailed information in the report, but set out below are some 
key messages 

 

Portfolio Key Facts Value 

Net Asset Value 31 March 2021 £962.47 million  

Number of Property Holdings 11 

Average Lot Size £87.5 million 

Total Passing Rent (per annum) £49.68 million* 

Estimated Rental Value (per annum) £57.22 million** 
 

* Contracted rent assumes rent free periods have expired, excludes guarantees & Elmsleigh Centre. 

**Excludes Elmsleigh Centre. 

 

Key Performance Indicators  Numbers  

Portfolio Capital Growth 
(last 12 months) 

-5.34% 

Portfolio Income Yield at 31/3/2021 4.59% 

Sinking Fund income cover 30.46 months 

Investment Cover Ratio 1.45 

Vacancy Rate – % of floor area 6.74% 

Vacancy Rate - % of market value 6.47% 

 

 

Acquisitions 
2020/21 

Portfolio  Sector Value (£m) 
March 2020 

Value (£m) 

105 – 107 High 
Street 

Regeneration  Retail  N/A 0.5 

    0.5 

 

Assets  Sector Value (£m) 
March 2020 

Value (£m)  
March 2021 

Investment     

Sunbury Business 
Park, Sunbury 

Office 391.73 393.10 

12 Hammersmith 
Grove, London 

Office 165.90 162.00 

Charter Building, 
Uxbridge 

Office 131.21 105.00 

Thames Tower, 
Reading 

Office 126.80 113.80 

The Porter Building, 
Slough 

Office 69.90 62.00 

World Business Centre 
4, Heathrow 

Office 45.80 46.00 

3 Roundwood Avenue, Office 20.10 18.34 

Page 6



 
 

Heathrow 

Elmbrook House, 
Sunbury 

Office 7.24 7.23 

Sub total   958.67 907.47 

Regeneration     

The Summit Centre, 
Sunbury  

Office 
Industrial  

13.50 12.70 

Communications 
House, Staines 

Office 14.50 14.70 

Elmsleigh Centre, 
Staines  

Retail  39.33 27.60 

Sub-Total  67.33 55.00 

Total   1,026 962.47 

 

 

 

Page 7



 
 

 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 There is no requirement for the Council to produce such a report or to make it 
public. As such there is the option to do nothing and not report on 
performance.  

2.2 This is not a realistic course of action and does not make sense bearing in 
mind the size of the investment and regeneration portfolio, and the need to be 
open and transparent in reporting about the portfolio and how it is performing. 
It will also provide an easy reference point for members of the public and the 
frequent FOI requests that we receive.  

2.3 It is therefore recommended that the development sub-committee note the 
report and agree to its publication on the Councils website.  

3. Financial implications 

3.1 The Annual Investment Report makes it clear that the ongoing global COVID 
19 pandemic has resulted in the worst annual decline in the economy in 300 
years, with GDP falling by 9.9% during 2020. Impacts have been felt in the 
office sector, with working at home the new norm, resulting in a fall in value of 
-5.1% (our portfolio declined in line at -5.34%). Retail fared worse as a result 
of an increase in online shopping with values falling by -28.23% (our portfolio 
decreased in line at -28.8%). This does mean the asset value on the Balance 
Sheet as at the end of March 2021 dipped £52m. However, the income 
streams continue to be robust, and over time we expect these values to 
recover. We are looking to hold these assets for the long term. 

3.2 Despite this gloomy picture, the property market is already showing signs on 
recovery, and in the medium term the view is that the investment and 

Page 8



 
 

regeneration portfolios are well placed to take advantage of an improving 
economy, and a structural shift away from Central London to the Thames 
Valley and West London.  

3.3 The COVID-19 effect of rent collection level on the Council’s overall financial 
position has been regularly reported on at various Cabinet and Council 
meetings, the most recent example being the verbal update by the Section 
151 Officer to the Council meeting held on 15 July 2021.  

 
3.4  As of the 31st March 2021 the investment portfolio collection rate was 

98.09%, substantially above the all property market average of 72.03% and 
the office market benchmark of 86.65%. This is a reflection of the strength of 
our assets and means we have continued to be able to support the funding of 
our services for residents and contribute towards our housing delivery and 
regeneration programme. 

 
3.5 The rent collection rates for the retail sector nationally, not surprisingly 

were lower than the all-property industry average. Over the 12 months 
to March 2021 retail landlords collected an average of 59.50% of all rent 
compared with the all-property average of 72.03%. In comparison the 
Elmsleigh Centre collected 34.87% of total rent over the same period, the 
lower figure reflecting Staines ranking in the wider retail market.  
 

3.6 The Committee are reminded that the reason we bought out the long lease on 
the centre was to enable the Council to invest in diversifying the site to protect 
the long-term viability of the centre. We are actively progressing this with 
schemes to add affordable residential on site and bring in a range of 
community facilities into the centre.  

 
3.7  As part of the Council’s ‘triple net’ approach a portion of money has been set 

aside from each acquisition to be added to a sinking fund. These funds are 
set aside, on the basis of 50 years modelling, to cover future potential dips in 
income in the event of tenants exercising break clauses or not renewing 
leases resulting in void and rent free periods.  

 
3.8 As at the 31st March 2021, the Council accumulated a sinking fund balance of 

£25.87m (as at 31 March 2020 the sinking fund balance was £20.3 million).    
At this level the sinking fund could cover the continued running of the Council 
services within the borough for 30.4 months at the current level of 
expenditure. As at March 2021 it was forecast that the sinking fund would 
increase to £43.21m in 2027 before closing at £24.55m at the end of 2030.  

3.9 Projections have been improving in recent months and indicate that even on 
the worst cast scenarios the Council will comfortably have sufficient funds to 
insulate the Revenue Budget and council tax payers from any dips in rental 
income over the next 10 years. 

4. Other considerations 

4.1 Risk management is embedded in the work of the team and how they assess 
all of our assets. The Council closely monitors the financial position of all our 
tenants and guarantors.  The accountancy firm Deloitte provides advice on 
tenant covenant strength on acquisitions, on large transactions and provides 
regular financial reviews. In addition, the Council subscribes to the Dun and 

Page 9



 
 

Bradstreet service which monitors the financial performance of the tenants. 
The monitoring of all tenants is clearly important at the current time. 

4.2 The lockdown for COVID-19 has resulted in the introduction of a number of 
measures to protect tenants. Whilst this has protected businesses it has to a 
large extent ‘tied the hands’ of landlords and limited the options available in 
respect of legal remedies as a result of withheld rental payments.  

4.3 The report includes specific commentary on risk distribution and security of 
income. More detail on the general principles around how we manage our 
assets are set out in the adopted 2020 Asset Management Plan.   

5. Equality and Diversity 

5.1 Not applicable. 

6. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

6.1 There are no climate change implications. As regards sustainability, the vast 
majority of our commercial assets are under 10 years old and have been built 
to meet more rigorous building regulations requirements. As an example, 12 
Hammersmith Grove is Platinum WiredScore rated, and a BREEAM Excellent 
building. 

7. Timetable for implementation 

7.1 Once the report has been noted, and any final amendments made, the report 
will be uploaded onto the Councils website. An easy to read Executive 
Summary will be provided on the website which will draw out the key 
information in a digestible form for those who just wish to review the headline 
facts. This may be in a one page visual format.  

 
Background papers: Capital Strategy 2021 
 
Appendices:  Annual Commercial Property Report for Financial Year 20/21 

Page 10



@spelthornebc

@spelthornebc

@spelthorneboroughcouncil

www.spelthorne.gov.uk
Reviewed: July 2021

Asset Managers 
Annual Report

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund

to 31 March 2021

Page 11



Contents

1 Introduction 1

2 Property Market Overview 2

3 Portfolio Valuation 5

4 Key Performance Indicators 7

5 Investment Activity 9

6 Portfolio Activity - Investment Portfolio 10

7 Portfolio Activity - Regeneration Portfolio  17

Asset Profile:  
BP Campus, Sunbury Business Park, Sunbury 23

Asset Profile:  
12 Hammersmith Grove, Hammersmith, London 24

Asset Profile:  
3 Roundwood Avenue, Stockley Park 25

Asset Profile:  
World Business Centre 4, Newall Road, Heathrow Airport  26

Asset Profile:  
Elmbrook House, 18-19 Station Road, Sunbury-on-Thames 27

Asset Profile:  
Charter Building, Uxbridge 28

Asset Profile:  
Thames Tower, Reading 29

Asset Profile:  
The Porter Building, Slough 30

Asset Profile:  
Elmsleigh Shopping Centre, Staines 31

Asset Profile:  
Communications House, South Street, Staines 32

Asset Profile:  
The Summit Centre, Sunbury 33

Glossary 34

Page 12



1 Introduction

The Investment report is produced by the Asset and Property Team at 
Spelthorne Borough Council. It includes an analysis of the commercial 
property portfolio owned by the Council as at 31 March 2021. 

The commercial portfolio is wholly owned by Spelthorne Borough 
Council; it comprises of the Investment and Regeneration portfolio. The 
objective of the investment portfolio is to generate revenue to support 
the services delivered by the Council to residents and businesses of 
Spelthorne including the delivery of affordable housing for residents. The 
regeneration portfolio holds assets with development potential to facilitate 
the regeneration of Staines town centre and meet the need for additional 
housing in the Borough.

*Contracted rent assumes rent free periods have expired and excludes guarantees

Commercial Portfolio Key Facts

Net Asset Value 31 March 2021 £962.47 million

Number of property holdings 11

Average Lot size £87.50 million

Total Passing Rent per annum £49.68 million*

Estimated Rental Value per annum £57.22 million

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

01Page 13



2 Property Market Overview

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a widespread impact on the property 
market. It has been reported that Britain’s economy experienced its 
biggest annual decline in 300 years with GDP falling by 9.9% during 2020. 
National lockdowns which resulted in the workforce working from home, 
the closure of non-essential retail, hospitality and schools posed unfamiliar 
challenges to all sectors of the property market. 

The initial unknown risk to the economy saw businesses take a cautious 
approach to all property decisions. As a result there was a sharp decline in 
letting activity and a decrease in commercial property transactions.  Within 
this cautious market and with limited transactions valuers discounted 
property values and all property capital values fell 3.5% over the year. The 
pandemic affected sectors differently with the retail sector most affected 
(-13.2%) and the industrial sector the least (9.3%). Office sector capital 
values fell by -5.1%.1   

The office market reacted to the enforced ‘work from home’ directive 
by suspending or halting any new letting transactions. Between March 
and December 2020 new demand for office space in the south east fell 
by 50%. The number of lettings completed in the south east declined by 
24% in 2020 compared to the 5 year average2. As the year progressed and 
working from home became the new norm, employers began to review 
their future property requirements based on the presumption that more 
staff would work flexibly on a permanent basis post pandemic. As such 
they have sought to dispose of surplus accommodation. This trend together 
with business failures has resulted in an increase of office availability 
which rose by 26% in 2020 3. Over the last year across the South East 
office market, rental values fell between 5-10% and lease incentives 
have increased as landlords aggressively compete to attract tenants. The 
traditional office is expected to evolve, with businesses retaining a smaller 
creative hub supported by other work locations within closer reach of 
employees typically outside Central London. This ‘hub and spoke’ model 
could see a structural shift in office size and location.      

The closure of non-essential retail and hospitality in three national 
lockdowns has had major impact on the retail sector. The pandemic 
accelerated the shift to on-line shopping, which reached a record 36% 

1 MSCI/IPD Carter Jonas

2 Cushman & Wakefield South East Office Market Report Q1 2021

3 Cushman & Wakefield South East Office Market Report Q4 2020

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

2 Page 14



of all retail sales in November (outside of lockdown periods). The rise in 
unemployment, constrained wage growth and low consumer confidence 
also affected sales. Many retailers could not sustain a prolonged closure 
and were forced into administration or CVA, others announced store 
closures or a switch to on-line trading only. Some of the well-known high 
street names collapsed during the year including Arcadia, Debenhams, 
Monsoon, Cotswold Outdoor, Office and Cath Kidston to name a few. 
Rental levels had been declining for 18 months prior to Covid but the crisis 
accelerated the trend, according to our valuers all retail rental values fell 
by 8.7% during 2020. In contrast, the industrial sector fared better largely 
due to the increased demand for distribution facilities as a consequence of 
changing shopping patterns. 

The most significant challenge for property managers has been the 
collection and preservation of rental income. Most tenants suffered a loss 
of cash flow, with some businesses affected to a greater degree than 
others. Other businesses did not want to tie up cash reserves with the 
uncertainty of how the country would exit the pandemic. Inevitably this 
meant a small number tenants were either unable to pay or unwilling to 
pay rent. The passing of the Coronavirus Act 2020 further hindered the 
landlords’ ability to collect rent as it placed a moratorium on legal remedies 
for non-payment. The Government Code of Practice for commercial 
property relationships during the Covid pandemic encouraged landlords 
to engage with their tenants and to work together to protect viable 
businesses. The key to maintaining robust rent collection rates was strong 
tenant relationships and a willingness to engage with tenants and agree 
workable payment plans. 

As the economy showed improved signs of stability so did the property 
sector. The investment market saw a strong end to 2020 with £470m 
transacted along the Western Corridor between September and December. 
Investment activity totalled a robust £42.7 billion in 2020 which although 
15% below the 2019 figure of £50.4 billion, was remarkable given the 
challenges investors faced 4. Furthermore, the roll out of the vaccination 
programme and the agreement of a Brexit trade deal in late December 
removed some of the economic uncertainty and valuations stabilised. 

Q1 2021 saw signs of increased optimism and all property monthly 
returns increased to 0.6% from 0.5% in January, the highest 12 monthly 

4 JLL UK Capital Markets 2020/21

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

3Page 15



total return since March 2020 5. This was primarily due to the industrial 
sector which saw positive capital value and rental growth on the back of 
continuing demand for distribution warehousing. Letting activity across 
the South East office market increased with take-up totalling 784,170 
sq.ft, the highest quarterly total since Q4 2018. Whilst positive, with four 
large lettings above 50,000 sq.ft there was still a lack of mid-sized letting 
transactions. The public sector, notably the Department of Work and 
Pensions accounted for the highest proportion of take up as they bolstered 
their network of offices to support anticipated rising unemployment. The 
market continued to register rising office availability, with a 5% quarterly 
increase. Availability along the M4 corridor stood at 6.3 million sq.ft. at the 
end of March above the 10 year average of 6.1 million sq.ft 6. 

Looking forward investment activity and transaction volumes are expected 
increase 20-25% on 2020 levels to reach between £50-£55 billion in 
2021.  In terms of sector performance the trends from 2020 will continue 
throughout 2021; UK shopping centres are forecast to see negative returns 
of -12.3%, the South-East industrial sector 10.6% and the South-East office 
sector -1.7% 7. The retail market will continue to face extreme challenges 
with falling rental and capital values. Whilst JLL forecast office capital 
growth of 1% nationally, capital growth is not expected in Spelthorne’s 
portfolio sub-markets this year. Office rents will come under pressure and 
incentives will continue to increase during 2021. Demand and the level of 
office space requirements have increased since December and this trend is 
expected to continue as lockdown restrictions ease and occupiers focus on 
returning to the office. Whilst supply is forecast to increase during 2021 it 
should plateaux by the end of the year. Headline rents are also predicted to 
stabilise at the end of the year assisted by the availability of grade A space 
and a limited development pipeline in the South-East. 

In the medium term both the investment and the regeneration portfolios 
are well placed to take advantage of an improving economy and a structural 
shift from Central London offices towards well located Thames Valley and 
West London locations. The quality of the buildings will provide some 
resilience to the downward pressure on rents and capital values. 

5 JLL MPEC March 2021

6 Knight Frank M25 Offices Q1 2021

7 JLL MPEC March 2021

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

04 Page 16



3 Portfolio Valuation

The investment and regeneration portfolio is independently valued annually 
at the 31 March to comply with the Councils accounting obligations. At the 
31 March 2021 Carter Jonas LLP valued the portfolio at £962.47 million. 
Carter Jonas LLP is familiar with the portfolio having been appointed 
the independent valuer for the last 3 years. The Investment portfolio is 
valued on Fair Value basis (i.e. open market) in accordance with the RICS 
Professional and Global Valuation Standards. 

The value of the investment portfolio at 31 March 2021 was £907.47 
million. No property acquisitions were made for the Investment fund during 
the financial year.  The portfolio decreased in value by 5.34% over the 12 
month period since March 2020. Two properties; BP Sunbury Business Park 
and WBC4 increased in value whereas most saw a decline. The decline in 
capital value was largely due to the impact of Covid-19 and the resultant 
softening of investment yields and market rents. At a property level the 
valuers factored in increased voids, increased incentives and lower rents 
in line with the wider office market. The Investment portfolio performed 
in line with the wider UK office market which suffered a decline in capital 
value of 5.1% during the financial year to March 2021 according to MSCI/
IPD. 

The combined value of the Regeneration Portfolio at 31 March 2021 was 
£55 million a reduction of 18.31% in capital value since March 2020. 
One acquisition of a High Street retail unit in Staines was made during 
the financial year. The property was an opportunistic purchase and has 
been consolidated into the Elmsleigh Shopping Centre asset valuation. 
Communications House saw a marginal increase in value, however both 
the Summit Centre and the Elmsleigh Centre saw a decrease in value. 
The decline in the value of the Elmsleigh Shopping Centre is in line with 
UK shopping centres which saw capital values fall by 28.2% over the 
last 12 months. It is important to note that the Council does not hold 
the regeneration portfolio to generate an income, unlike the investment 
portfolio. The assets are a long-term hold, acquired to meet the Council’s 
objective to re-generate Staines Town Centre and provide more affordable 
housing across the Borough. The Elmsleigh Centre was valued on an 
existing use basis for accountancy purposes and no hope value was 
attached to the development potential of the shopping centre and the 
surrounding retail units. 

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

05Page 17



Investment Portfolio 

Address Sector Value (£m) 
March 2020

Value (£m) 
March 2021 

Elmbrook House, Sunbury  Offices  £7.24  £7.23 

3 Roundwood Avenue, Stockley Park  Offices  £20.10  £18.34 

World Business Centre 4, Heathrow  Offices  £45.80  £46.00 

12 Hammersmith Grove, London  Offices  £165.90  £162.00 

The Charter Building, Uxbridge  Offices  £131.20  £105.00 

The Porter Building, Slough  Offices  £69.90  £62.00 

Sunbury Business Park, Sunbury  Offices  £391.73  £393.10 

Thames Tower, Reading  Offices  £126.80  £113.80 

Sub total  £958.67  £907.47 

Regeneration Portfolio

Address Sector Value (£m) 
March 2020

Value (£m) 
March 2021 

The Summit Centre, Sunbury  Office/Industrial  £13.50  £12.70 

Communications House, Staines  Office  £14.50  £14.70 

Elmsleigh Centre, Staines  Retail  £39.33  £27.60 

Sub total  £67.33  £55.00 

Total  All Properties  £1,026  £962.47 

Commercial Property Assets - Valuation table

Commercial Portfolio Sector Analysis (by value)

Office/Industrial

1.32%
Retail  

2.87%

Office 

95.81%

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

06 Page 18



4 Key Performance Indicators

The Council has set a number of key performance indicators for the 
Investment Portfolio which were published in the Capital Strategy 2021. The 
portfolio capital growth measures the long term capital performance of the 
fund, comparing the current valuation with the previous year. As noted earlier 
the value of the portfolio fell over the last 12 months by -5.34%, in line with 
the market which fell by -5.1%. This is not a concern as the Council is a long-
term investor and the medium-term prospects for offices in the South East 
are positive. Capital growth is forecast to return to the Council’s sub-markets 
from 2022. 

The Council’s primary focus is the rental income provided by the investment 
portfolio which is used to support the services the Council provides within 
the Borough. The management strategy for the investment portfolio 
focuses on protecting and optimising rental income over capital growth. The 
investment portfolio generated an income of £47.23 million for the financial 
year to 31 March. This is the passing rent including rental guarantees less any 
rental concessions and arrears. During the financial year the net contribution 
of the combined portfolio to the revenue budget was £10.19 million. 

The investment portfolio income yield at valuation was 4.58%. The income 
or initial yield, being the annualised rent expressed as a percentage of the 
portfolio value. The equivalent yield, perhaps a better indication of the return 
over time, as it includes the rents of tenants currently benefiting from 
rent free periods was 5.80%. The yield is an indication that the portfolio is 
producing a sufficient income return to meet loan repayments and interest, 
sinking fund contribution and the net contribution required to cover the 
Council’s business activities. The portfolio initial yield also provides a good 
guide to the quality of the investment, with a high-quality investment 
expected to produce a low initial yield. The portfolio initial yield demonstrates 
that the Council holds good quality assets. 

The Council funded the acquisition of the properties during the period 2016 
to 2018 by borrowing at very competitive fixed rates of interest mainly from 
the Public Works Loan Board. The rental income is required to service the 
interest and loan repayments. For the year to 31 March the Council made 
re-payments of £11.05 million to the PWLB plus a further £23.16 million in 
debt interest on the commercial assets. The investment cover ratio of 1.45 

Key Performance Indicators - Investment Portfolio

Portfolio Capital Growth (last 12 months) -5.34%

Portfolio Income Yield at 31 March 2021 4.59%

Sinking Fund Net Income Cover 30.46 months

Investment Cover Ratio 1.45

Vacancy Rate - % of floor area 6.74%

Vacancy Rate - % of market value/ERV 6.47%

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

07Page 19



demonstrates that the Council is comfortably able to re-pay the interest and 
loan repayments. 

The Council is prudent in its approach to protecting the rental income 
required to cover the cost of the Council’s services and has an established 
sinking fund. A proportion of rental income is reserved on a quarterly basis 
to the sinking fund to cover all capital and revenue costs associated with 
the properties. These costs may include rental voids, marketing costs, 
refurbishment costs which are cannot be recovered from the tenant as well 
as the future potential cost of redevelopment. 

As at the 31 March 2021 the Council had accumulated a sinking fund balance 
of £25.87 million (as at 31 March 2020 the sinking fund balance was £20.3 
million). The sinking fund at this level could support the continued running of 
the Council services within the Borough for 30.4 months at the current level 
of expenditure.

The sinking fund is subject to rigorous financial modelling to ensure that 
the fund can meet the potential costs associated with the portfolio. Over 
the last year, as the market conditions deteriorated a greater focus was 
placed on stress testing the sinking fund and forecasting the likely balance 
over a 10-year period on an expected and worst-case basis. As at March, it 
was forecast that the sinking fund would increase to £43.21 million in 2027 
before closing at £24.55m at the end of 2030. The Council is confident that 
even on a worst-case scenario the sinking fund remains positive. 

The combined commercial portfolio had a void rate at the 31 March of 
6.23%. The Charter Building remains the Council’s largest single vacancy at 
5.46%, however, it does not constitute a void due to the rental guarantees 
provided by the vendor which expires in August 2022. The guarantee covers 
the vacancy costs associated with the building including rent, rates and 
service charge. The 4th floor (3,128 sq.ft) at Communications House, became 
available in January after the tenant exercised their break option and the 
remaining void relates to the Elmsleigh Shopping Centre in Staines.  

The Charter Building is the only notional void in the investment portfolio. 
The vacancy represents 6.74% by reference to the total floor area of the 
investment portfolio or 6.47% when calculated as a percentage of the 
portfolio rental value. The vacancy rate has reduced from 8.4% in March 
2020 due to several successful lettings during the year. The vacancy rate 
compares favourably with the South East Office vacancy rate which was 
18.3% (by floor area) according to MSCI/IPD at the end Q1 2021. 

Property Town Portfolio Sq.ft to Let % of Property 
total floor area 

The Charter Building Uxbridge Investment  107,524.00 5.46%

Communications House Staines Regeneration  3,128.00 0.16%

Elmsleigh Centre Staines Regeneration  12,165.00 0.62%

Total Vacancy  1,970,988.00 6.23%

Commercial portfolio - Void Table 

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

08 Page 20



Assets Portfolio Sector Value (£m) 
March 2020 Value (£m) 

105-107 High 
Street, Staines

Regeneration Retail N/A 0.50

Sub-Total  0.50

5 Investment Activity

Over the last 12 months the Council acquired one property, 105-107 High 
Street in Staines-upon-Thames, which it bought from Marks & Spencer 
Plc in January 2021.  This in-borough property was acquired with vacant 
possession at a purchase price of £500,000. The unit of c.50,000 sq.ft 
provides an important linkage between the high street and the Elmsleigh 
Centre, the freehold of which had been acquired in February 2020. The 
acquisition enabled the Council to attain control of a key high street 
unit that is currently integrated and focal to the shopping centre. It is 
strategically important to the Council’s regeneration plans for the town 
centre. The property provides a long term, residential-led regeneration 
opportunity which aligns with the Council’s redevelopment aspirations for 
the town centre. In the short to medium term the Council plans to mitigate 
holding costs and re-let the retail premises in which there is keen interest 
from a number of retailers.

Properties acquired since March 2020

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

09Page 21



6 Portfolio Activity - Investment Portfolio

Letting Activity

Despite the challenging leasing market and low levels of office take-up, the 
Council completed on three new lettings across the investment portfolio 
totalling 24,383 sq.ft over the last 12 months. The lettings at the Charter 
Building and Thames Tower have increased the contracted rental income, 
after the expiry of rent free period by £632,494 per annum. As a result of 
the leasing activity Thames Tower is now fully let and the Charter Building 
is 54.33% let. At the year end a further letting was in solicitors hands 
which increases the occupancy rate to c.60%. The void rent on the Charter 
Building is covered by rental guarantees negotiated on purchase and which 
expire in August 2022. 

Charter Building, Uxbridge

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

10 Page 22



In June the Council completed a new lease with Validity International Ltd 
at the Charter Building, Uxbridge. Validity took a 10 year lease, with a 5th 
year break option at a rent of £271,328 per annum on the 1st floor of the 
building (8,479 sq.ft). The Council undertook the Cat B fit out on behalf 
of the tenant and delivered a fully fitted office allowing Validity to take 
immediate occupation. The office fit out was delivered on time despite the 
challenges provided by the national lockdown.

In September an Agreement for Lease was completed with the IWG Group 
to take 10,904 sq.ft on the 1st floor of the Charter Building. A straight 10-
year lease was agreed with IWG who operates under the brand ‘Spaces’, 
on an agreed base rent plus turnover deal estimated at £179,916 per 
annum. This was an expansion of ‘Spaces’ existing office on the ground 
floor and part of a wider transaction to achieve improved terms on the 
ground floor lease. The ground floor lease was extended by 6 years to be 
co-terminus with the 1st floor and the rent mechanism altered to a base 
rent plus turnover deal from an unsatisfactory profit share arrangement 
which increases the rent payable on their existing lease by approximately 
£188,410 per annum.

In November the Council completed a lease of the part 10th floor at 
Thames Tower, Reading (5,000 sq.ft) to the ISIO Group Ltd. A full repairing 
and insuring lease for a term of 10 years subject to a tenant’s option 
to break in the 5th year was agreed at a rent of £181,250 per annum, 
reflecting pre-pandemic rental levels. This new letting was the only office 
transaction to complete in Reading town centre in 2020. 

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

11Page 23



Asset Management

During the year the Council completed a number of asset management 
initiatives which improved long term rental income by extending the lease 
term. 

In October at Stockley Park, the Council was successful in varying the lease 
with Volga Dnepr on the 1st floor (21,479 sq.ft) moving the tenant’s break 
option from January 2021 to January 2024 in return for 7 months rent free. 
By retaining the tenant in the building for a further 3 years the Council has 
preserved £1.95 million in rent and prevented the costs associated with a 
void office including the replacement of the air conditioning system. 

At the Porter Building, Slough in June 2020 the Council agreed a five 
year reversionary lease on the retail unit of 2,540 sq.ft which trades as 
Starbucks. This secured a future additional income of c.£200,000 and the 
tenant was granted the equivalent of 7.5 months rent free. 

A similar agreement also at the Porter Building was completed with the 
IWG Group on the ground and second floor (31,726 sq.ft). The lease was 
extended for a further 5 years, providing the Council with an estimated 
additional income of £4.11 million in exchange for 24 months at a reduced 
rent.   

In July the Council completed a Deed of Variation and reversionary lease 
with WeWork at 12 Hammersmith Grove, London on 54,698 sq.ft. The 
transaction extended the current lease term by five years to 2042 which 
provided an additional net income of £10.4 million which is secured by 
WeWork Companies LLC. WeWork were granted an 18-month rent free 
period structured over 5 years.

The three latter transactions were principally motivated by the tenants’ 
need for short term financial assistance due to Covid but has created 
an additional £14.71 million in future net income receipts. The Council 
has been proactive in managing the portfolio to support financially viable 
tenants and thereby prevent tenant failures and costly voids across the 
portfolio. By engaging with our tenants, the Council has embraced the 
Government’s Code of Practice for commercial property relationships 
between landlord and tenant during the Covid pandemic.  

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

12 Page 24



Rent Collection

The collection of rent has been a challenge for all landlords throughout the 
last 12 months. Since 25 March 2020 the Coronavirus Act and successive 
regulations limited the landlord’s remedies to enforce the collection of 
rent. The use of forfeiture was prohibited, the ability to use Enforcement 
Agents a process called CRAR was restrained and there was a ban on the 
use of statutory demands and winding up orders where the tenant could 
not pay for Covid-19 reasons. The Code of Practice for Commercial Property 
Relationships during the Covid Pandemic also encouraged landlords to 
engage with their tenants to find mutually beneficial options to pay the 
rent. 

The Council collected 98.09% of rent across the office portfolio during 
the financial year. This was substantially above the UK all property market 
average (72.03%) and the office market benchmark (86.65%) across all 
four quarters. This was due to a combination of sound stock selection, 
financially strong tenant covenants and a pro-active approach towards asset 
management and tenant liaison.

Rent Collection Rates - Office

   

Industry Average - OfficesSpelthorne Offices Property Industry Average - All Property 

Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

*at day 35
Source: Remit Consultancy

Portfolio Rent Collection Statistics*

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

13Page 25



The rent collection statistics reflect a small number of rent deferral 
agreements which will be repaid over successive quarters. Only two 
tenants have failed to meet their rental obligations; one tenant was placed 
into Administration and the Council is seeking a summary judgement for 
the payment of arrears from the other. The Council has written off only 
0.02% of the overall rent due for the financial year.

The rent collection rate for the March quarter 2021 which cover the rent 
due for the period 25 March to 23 June 2021 was 94.79% after 35 days 
which compares positively to the property industry average of 90.20%. 

Portfolio Rent Collection Statistics - March quarter 2021

0 days 7 days 21 days 35 days0 days 7 days 21 days 35 days

Commercial Portfolio excl. Elmsleigh Centre
Property Industry Average - Offices

Elmsleigh Centre, Staines
Property Industry Average - Retail*

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

14 Page 26



Rent Analysis – Security of Income

BP International Ltd is the Council’s largest tenant paying an annual rent of 
£17.57 million which equates to 39.61% of the total investment portfolio 
rental value. This is not surprising as Sunbury Business Park remains the 
Council’s largest asset by floor area and value at £393.1 million. WeWork, the 
serviced office provider at 12 Hammersmith Grove is the Council’s second 
largest tenant representing 6.70% of the total rental value followed closely 
by Amadeus IT Services and Dazn Media. The Council’s top 10 tenants 
contribute 74.76% of the rental income. 

The Council closely monitors the financial position of all our tenants and 
guarantors. The accountancy firm Deloitte provides advice on tenant 
covenant strength on acquisitions, on large transactions and provides regular 
financial reviews. In addition, we subscribe to the Dun and Bradstreet 
service which monitors the financial performance of the tenants. Further 
monitoring via Experian is also undertaken on a periodic basis to supplement 
the Dun & Bradstreet analysis. The monitoring of all tenants has clearly been 
important over the last 12 months.

The rental income across the investment portfolio is supported by tenants of 
high financial strength. According to Dun & Bradstreet of the 49 companies 
that are monitored, 67% of the companies within the portfolio are rated as 
a low risk of business failure, 20% moderate risk and 6% high risk. All the 
Council’s top 10 tenants by rental value are considered a low risk of business 
failure. 

Property % of rent

BP International Ltd 39.61%

12 Hammersmith Grove Tenant Ltd (We Work) 6.70%

Amadeus IT Services Uk Ltd 5.54%

Dazn Media Services Ltd 5.33%

MDSOL Europe Ltd 3.94%

Creative Artists Agency UK Ltd 3.40%

Ericsson Ltd 3.23%

For a Thames Tower Limited 2.73%

Fiserv (Europe) ltd 2.18%

Mattel UK Limited 2.10%

Total of Top 10 74.76%

Investment Portfolio - Top 10 tenants (by rent) 31 March 2021

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

15Page 27



Longevity of Income

The Portfolio is positioned well in terms of longevity of rental income with 
51.7% of total rent passing secured for 10 years or more. Of this figure 
42% is secured for more than 15 years. Both BP International and WeWork 
have leases which have an unexpired term of greater than 15 years. The 
proportion of short-term income, expiring in 5 years or less is 21.6%. The 
long-term trend in offices, which the pandemic has reinforced is for shorter, 
more flexible leases with most tenants insisting on a 3rd or 5th year break 
option in a standard 5 or 10 year lease term.  

The weighted average unexpired lease term to lease expiry across the 
investment portfolio is 10.97 years, with the unexpired term to the nearest 
break option 10.45 years. By comparison the weighted average unexpired 
lease term was 11.57 years in March 2020 and 10.97 year to the nearest 
break option. Without any asset management input the unexpired lease 
term would be expected to reduce by 12 months between valuations. 
Indeed, the weighted average unexpired lease term indicates that 
approximately six months of income was added or preserved through new 
lettings, re-gears and other asset management initiatives. The completion 
of reversionary leases with WeWork, Spaces and Starbucks together with 
the lettings at the Charter Building and Thames Tower have had a positive 
impact on the portfolio’s income position. 

21.6%

26.7%

35.3%

6.7%

9.7%

0-5 Years 10-15 years5-10 years 15-20 years 20+ years

Lease Length (by rent)

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

16 Page 28



7 Portfolio Activity - Regeneration Portfolio 

Letting Activity

During the financial year, three new lettings were completed at the Summit 
Centre, Sunbury producing £95,000 per annum in secured rent. In July a 
five year lease of Unit 1f (1,086 sq.ft) was completed to Benjamin Raymond 
Ltd at a rent of £18,500 per annum, in excess of the previous rent and the 
estimated rental value. The Council had taken possession of the unit in 
March 2020 after the previous tenant went into liquidation.  

In October, a two year lease of the 1st floor (3,799 sq.ft) at 33 Hanworth 
Road was completed with SSS Gears at a rental of £40,000 per annum. In 
March 2021 the rear warehouse (2,164 sq.ft) of 33 Hanworth Road was let 
to LP Customs Clearance Ltd for a term of five years with a break option 
in the third year at a rent of £36,500 per annum. The ground floor (4,661 
sq.ft) will be occupied by the Council’s Business Incubator, an initiative 
developed by the Economic Development Team. The building is now fully 
occupied. 

In November the lease renewal of unit 1D (1,029 sq.ft) was completed 
with Sandrair International Ltd. A new five year lease subject to a tenant 
break option at a rent of £15,500 per annum rising to £18,500 per annum 
was agreed. The lease renewal maintains the income and minimises the 
Council’s exposure to void costs.  

33 Hanworth Road, Summit Centre, Sunbury

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

17Page 29



The Council completed six new lettings at the Elmsleigh Shopping Centre, 
Staines during the 12 months to March, providing a headline rent of 
£170,000 and minimising the Council’s exposure to void costs. Despite the 
lettings completing in difficult market conditions, the Council was pleased 
to welcome four new retail stores to the Shopping Centre including 
Ximiso, Mobile Bitz, and Talking Tree. The lettings at units 28 and 32a were 
completed to new legal entities after the original tenants; Regis Plc and 
Johnsons Shoes were placed in Administration and they continue to trade 
as a hairdresser and shoe retailer. Toy Barnhaus took a new lease of unit 19 
moving from the adjacent store due to the success of the business and the 
need for additional floor space.  

Letting Activity       

Date of 
letting Unit size 

(sq.ft) Tenant Rent Use

Nov-20 91 High Street 682 Talking Tree  £-  Bicycle repair/
community Café

Mar-21 Unit 19 2215 Toy Barnhaus  £40,000.00 Childrens Toys

Nov-20 Unit 28 401
UK Hairdressers 
2190 Ltd

 £15,000.00 Hairdresser

Jan-21 Unit 32a 1171
Newjohn 
Retailer Staines 
Ltd

 £50,000.00 Shoe Shop

Nov-20 Unit 37 904 Mobile Bitz  £30,000.00 Mobile phone 

Nov-20 Unit 46 1179 Ximiso  £35,000.00 Gift shop

Total  £170,000.00 

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

18 Page 30



Asset Management initiatives 

In addition to the new lettings detailed above, a large number of asset 
management initiatives were instigated at the Elmsleigh Centre and the 
adjacent retail holdings. A total of forty transactions have been negotiated; 
mainly these consisted of restructuring the lease term and/or the rent 
payable. The transactions arose due to a combination of scheduled lease 
events; commercial/economic drivers brought about by the trading 
restrictions, as well as our over-arching objectives as asset managers to 
review and optimise each letting package as a whole.

The Council’s asset management strategy during the pandemic has been 
to negotiate the best possible deal in each individual case, to keep the 
premises open and the tenant trading wherever possible and in all advisable 
cases. Not only does this mitigate the void costs for the Council but it 
maintains a vibrant town centre as retailers ‘lean on each other’ in terms of 
driving trade. Despite the government measures to provide support grants 
and reduce business rates obligations, the impact upon retailers has been 
severe after seven months of general retail lockdown. Over the past year 
Staines has seen the loss of Debenhams, Topshop, New Look, Ponden 
Home, Accessorize/Monsoon, Regis Plc ‘Supercuts’, and Johnsons Shoes.

Over thirty transactions were completed following negotiations prompted by 
an approaching lease expiry or a tenant exercising their break option. These 
included lease renewals with Waterstones, Claires Accessories, H Samuel, 
The Body Shop among others.  A further seven lease restructures were the 
result of tenants entering into pre-pack administration. This was the case for 
Moss Bros, River Island, Top Shop, Trespass, Supercuts, Clinton Cards and 
Muffin Break. In most cases the asset manager was able to act quickly to 
agree a lease restructure on somewhat better terms with the new company 
before the retailer declared insolvency. In a few cases involving small 
independent businesses a more flexible approach was employed recognising 
the need to support ‘local’ businesses and protect jobs within the borough. 
In these instances, a covid rent concession was granted to the retailer which 
amounted to a reduction in their rent for a short period. Where the asset 
manager was approached by the larger national tenants seeking rent relief, 
the Council was able to agree an extension to their lease to equate the 
provision of a short-term concession.        

In line with the wider retail market common theme among the deals 
negotiated during this period has been the move away from fixed rents 
and towards a turnover rent model. Although a fixed base rent provides the 
landlord with income certainty, it does not address the uncertainty in the 
marketplace. Turnover rent deals allow for a degree of fair play to be reflected 
in the agreements and ensure that rents remain affordable by reflecting 
sales, meanwhile acting as an incentive for tenants to optimise profitability in 
the knowledge that their rents remain proportionate.

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

19Page 31



Rent collection

The rent collection rates for the retail sector nationally, not surprisingly 
were lower than the all-property industry average. Over the 12 months 
to March 2021 retail landlords collected an average of 59.50% of all rent 
compared with the all-property average of 72.03% according to Remit 
Consulting. In comparison the Elmsleigh Centre collected 34.87% of total 
rent over the same period, the lower figure reflecting Staines ranking in 
the wider retail market. During the first lockdown only 4 stores within the 
Elmsleigh Centre considered ‘essential’ retail remained open. Footfall fell 
to its lowest point in April and May and even when the store re-opened 
at the end of June the number of customers visiting the centre was 55% 
of 2019 footfall. In these situations, many of the retailers were unable 
or unwilling to pay rent whilst their premises were closed and with the 
Government moratorium preventing landlord’s taking punitive action or 
forfeiture measures there were limited options for the Council to enforce 
payment. The payment of rent was often incorporated into the terms of 
lease restructures mentioned above. In addition, the Council agreed a 
number of payment plans whereby tenants have been permitted to pay 
off arrears over several quarters to ease their immediate cashflow issues. 
The Council expects to collect further payments during 2021 as retailers 
resume trading.  

Rent Collection - Retail 

Industry Average - RetailElmsleigh Centre, Staines Property Industry Average - All Property 

Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

*at day 35
Source: Remit Consultancy

Portfolio Rent Collection Statistics*

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

20 Page 32



The rent collection rate for the March quarter due on 25 March 2021 but 
collected in advance for the period 25 March to 23 June 2021 was 53.70% 
after 35 days. At the same date the property industry average for all retail 
property was 63.30%. 

Rent Analysis – Security of Income

The passing rent on the regeneration portfolio as at 31 March 2021 was 
£5.321 million. Samsung Electronics (UK) Ltd at Communications House, 
Staines and ADT Fire & Security Plc at the Summit Centre, Sunbury are the 
two largest tenants contributing 17.7% and 15.97% respectively to the total 
rental income across the portfolio. Both tenants are considered a low risk 
of business failure by Dun & Bradstreet. Primark, Matalan and Deichmann 
Shoes at the Elmsleigh Shopping Centre are also key tenants cumulatively 
providing 21.9% of the total passing rent. The top ten tenants provide 
£3.476 million or 65.34% of the total rental income. At the 31st March, six 
of the Council’s largest tenants by rent were considered a low financial risk 
(50.73%) whilst three companies were of a moderate risk of failure (12.98%) 
and one assessed as a moderate to high risk by Dun & Bradstreet (1.63%). 

 

Property % rent

Samsung Electronics (UK) Ltd 17.70%

ADT Fire & Security plc 15.97%

Primark 10.34%

Matalan Retail Ltd 8.27%

Deichmann Shoes UK Limited 3.29%

Decathlon UK Ltd 2.36%

Sportswift Ltd 2.35%

H Samuel Ltd 1.82%

Matthison & Macara LLP 1.63%

Telefonica UK Ltd 1.62%

Total of Top 10 65.34%

Regeneration Portfolio - Top 10 tenants (by rent) 31 March 2021

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

21Page 33



Longevity of income

Unlike the investment portfolio the properties in the regeneration portfolio 
were acquired for their medium to long term redevelopment potential. 
This is reflected by the lease profile which illustrates that 88.5% of the 
passing rent is due to expire within the next five years. This provides the 
Council with the opportunity to achieve vacant possession to redevelop 
the property. Indeed, the Council is actively managing the lease expiries 
at Communications House, Staines to ensure that vacant possession is 
provided in 2023 to enable a redevelopment scheme. On mixed office/
industrial property such as the Summit Centre short lease terms provide 
the opportunity to re-let on improved rental terms in a growth market. 

The retail market especially during the last 12 months has seen a 
fundamental shift towards short term leases sub-five years. The weighted 
average unexpired lease term on the Elmsleigh Centre is 3.4 years. This 
is reflective of the weak in-town retail market which the Council is aiming 
to redress through new lettings and lease renewals. The vacancy rate 
within the Elmsleigh Centre is 4.79% with units 20, 35/36, 47/48 currently 
available to let. This compares favourably with the south east retail sector 
vacancy rate of 8.9% according to MSCI/IPD. The overall vacancy rate on 
the regeneration portfolio is 4.07%.    

21.6%

26.7%

35.3%

6.7%

9.7%

0-5 Years 10-15 years5-10 years

10.3%
1.2%

88.5%

Lease Length (by rent)

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

22 Page 34



Asset Strategy Summary

Long term hold with indexed linked rent reviews. Next rent review in September and 
December 2021 which will provide a substantial uplift in income for the Council. 

Asset Profile:  
BP Campus, Sunbury Business Park, Sunbury

Asset Details

Sector: 
Office/Business Park

Tenure: 
Freehold

Independent Valuation:
£393.1 million
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£384.9 million 
(December 2016)

Property 
Description:

The main site is arranged as a campus style development comprising of eight 
buildings constructed between 2000 and 2014. They are of steel framed 
construction with glazed and aluminium cladding under a flat roof. They 
are fitted out as offices with a Grade A specification although some of the 
accommodation includes laboratories and a lecture hall. 

The SW corner site comprises of 4 buildings dating from the 1950’s to 2000. 
The offices, laboratories and warehouse are of a basic internal specification in 
line with the age of the property. There are 2,001 car parking spaces. 

Total Area: 
701,659 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£17.57 million pa

ERV:
£19.90 million pa

Vacancy %
0%

Key Tenant: BP International Ltd

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

23Page 35



Asset Strategy Summary

The grade A building is well placed to benefit from a return to positive rental growth over the 
next five years. Whilst not currently reversionary, it is anticipated that rental uplifts will be 
achieved at rent reviews in 2022/23. Capital growth is expected to turn positive in 2022. The 
property should benefit from the post pandemic trend towards satellite offices outside Central 
London.

Asset Profile:  
12 Hammersmith Grove, Hammersmith, London

Asset Details

Sector: 
Office

Tenure: 
Long Leasehold

Independent Valuation:
£162 million
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£170 million
(January 2018)

Property 
Description:

The property is located in a prime position in Hammersmith, next to the 
entrance to Hammersmith Underground station and within easy access to 
the A4/M4 corridor and Heathrow. The Landmark building was completed in 
February 2016. The multi-let office building provides Grade A accommodation 
over ground and ten upper floors.

Net Lettable Area:
170,011 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£9.55 million pa 

ERV:
£9.11 million pa

Vacancy %
0%

Key Tenant:
We Work Hammersmith, Dazn Media Services, Creative Arts Agency, 
Medidata Europe Ltd, Research Instruments ltd and All Nippon 
Airways Co Ltd.  

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

24 Page 36



Asset Strategy Summary

To maintain the income stream and avoid void costs by retaining the tenants where possible 
bearing in mind both have break options in 2022 and 2024. To ensure that the building is 
maintained to a high standard to retain its competitive edge on the business park.

Asset Profile:  
3 Roundwood Avenue, Stockley Park

Asset Details

Sector: 
Office/Business Park

Tenure: 
Freehold

Independent Valuation:
£18.34 million 
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£21.40 million  
(July 2017)

Property 
Description:

Stockley Park is a well-established business park located near Uxbridge with 
excellent transport connections to J4 of the M4, M25, Heathrow Airport and 
Central London via Hayes and Harlington Rail Station, Uxbridge Underground 
station and soon Crossrail. The property was built in 1990 and was 
comprehensively refurbished in 2014 and 2016. It is a two storey, steel-framed 
building with glazed atrium reception and WC’s and shower facilities on both 
ground and first floor. The refurbished office space provides 4 pipe fan coil air 
conditioning, LED lighting, raised floors, metal tiled suspended ceiling. A car 
park provides 136 car parking spaces, a ratio of 3.17 spaces per 1,000sq.ft.

Net Lettable Area: 
42,961 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£1.43 million pa

ERV:
£1.44 million pa

Vacancy %
0%

Key Tenant: Verifone (UK) Ltd, Volga DNEPR (UK) Ltd   

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

25Page 37



Asset Strategy Summary

Long term hold to benefit from the 11 year income return. Asset well placed to withstand 
market movement due to grade A building, close proximity to Heathrow and long lease to a 
tenant of substantial financial strength. 

Asset Profile:  
World Business Centre 4, Newall Road, Heathrow Airport 

Asset Details

Sector: 
Office

Tenure: 
Part freehold and 
part leasehold

Independent Valuation:
£46 million
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£47.248 million  
(September 2017)

Property 
Description:

Located to the north of Heathrow airport it is a stand-alone office building 
adjacent to World Business Centre 1, 2 and 3. A modern, grade A building 
completed in 2018 it provides open plan accommodation over ground and three 
upper floors. There is an underground car park providing a car parking ratio of 
1:556sq.ft. It is a single-let building on full repairing and insuring terms.

Net Lettable Area:
89,282 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£2.46 million pa

ERV:
£2.37 million pa

Vacancy %
0%

Key Tenant: Amadeus IT Services UK Ltd

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

26 Page 38



Asset Strategy Summary

The property provides a good income for a further 5 years (lease expires 2026).

It provides flexible office space in a regional market and compares favourably to other office 
accommodation in the area in terms of parking and transport connections. The property 
benefits from planning consent for a change of use from offices to residential apartments. The 
site together with 17 Station Road also owned by the Council has development potential to 
provide a high number of residential dwellings when the lease expires.

Asset Profile:  
Elmbrook House, 18-19 Station Road, Sunbury-on-Thames

Asset Details

Sector: 
Office

Tenure: 
Freehold

Independent Valuation:
£7.23 million 
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£7.160 million 
(December 2016)

Property 
Description:

The property was constructed in the mid 1990’s and comprehensively 
refurbished in 2016. It is three storey concrete framed structure with brick 
elevations and hipped slate covered roof. The property provides office 
accommodation over ground with three upper floors.

Net Lettable Area: 
19,480 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£0.477 million pa

ERV:
£0.458 million pa

Vacancy %
0%

Key Tenant: Complete Cover Group Ltd  

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

27Page 39



Asset Strategy Summary

To let the vacant space so the building is fully income producing at rents that are at or above 
the market rate. The building is best placed to benefit from the post pandemic uptick in 
demand for satellite offices within close proximity to Central London, Heathrow and soon 
Crossrail. Over the next five years as the market recovers the building should benefit from 
rental growth and positive capital growth.   

Asset Profile:  
Charter Building, Uxbridge

Asset Details

Sector: 
Office

Tenure: 
Freehold

Independent Valuation:
£105 million 
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£135.98 million 
(August 2018)

Property 
Description:

The property is located in Uxbridge town centre within close proximity to the 
train station and well connected to Central London and Heathrow. Completed 
in 2017 it provides modern, high quality office accommodation over lower 
ground and five upper floors. The building benefits from a large reception area 
and five storey atrium, decked roof terraces, coffee shop, concierge service 
and 326 car parking spaces. The open plan floorplates of c.54,000 sq.ft provide 
flexible space that can be split in size to accommodate tenants from 3,000 sqft 
upwards.

Net Lettable Area:
235,458 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£3.12 million pa 
(excl. guarantees)

ERV:
£7.41 million pa

Vacancy  
(as % of floor area):
46%

Key Tenant:
IWG t/a Spaces, Tracelink Europe, Parkside Recruitment, AVA Security, 
Regeneron, Insight Direct, Validity International, Lavazza Coffee (UK) 
Ltd. 

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

28 Page 40



Asset Strategy Summary

The building is multi-let which provides active management opportunities to improve the 
income profile by negotiating longer leases, increasing the rents, removing break options or 
improving the covenant strength. The building is reversionary and with Reading forecast to 
recover from the pandemic quicker than other SE towns the medium term prospects for rental 
growth and capital growth are positive.

Asset Profile:  
Thames Tower, Reading

Asset Details

Sector: 
Office

Tenure: 
Freehold

Independent Valuation:
£113.8 million 
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£119.32 million (August 
2018)

Property 
Description:

An iconic building completed in 2017 it provides high quality office space in 
central Reading. It is prominently located in Reading town centre adjacent 
to Reading train station. It provides Grade A office accommodation over 
basement, ground and 14 upper floors. Floor plates of c.14,000sq.ft allow 
for sub-division and multiple occupation. A private occupier terrace and café 
is provided on the 14th floor. The area surrounding Thames Tower known 
as Station Hill is subject to redevelopment providing further office, retail, 
residential and public open space thereby improving the location.  

Net Lettable Area: 
190,868 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£6.36 million pa 
(excl. guarantees)

ERV:
£6.61 million pa

Vacancy  
(as % of floor area):
0%

Key Tenant:
Fora, Pret a Manger, Clarkslegal, Make a Wish, Broadway Malyan, 
HSBC, MBNL, Eriksson, BDO, Austin Fraser, Objective Corporation. 

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

29Page 41



Asset Strategy Summary

A multi-let office building which provides active asset management opportunities to increase 
value through lease extensions, new lettings, removing break options and improving covenant 
strength. Medium term opportunities to benefit from anticipated rental growth at rent reviews 
in 2022/23 and capital growth especially when Crossrail is finally operational. 

Asset Profile:  
The Porter Building, Slough

Asset Details

Sector: 
Office

Tenure: 
Freehold

Independent Valuation:
£62 million
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£66.47 million  
(August 2018)

Property 
Description:

The building was developed in 2017 to a high specification achieving WELL 
certification. It is located in a prominent position in Slough town centre 
opposite the station. It provides high quality office accommodation over ground 
and four upper floors on floor plates of c.27,000 sq.ft allowing for sub-division 
and multiple occupation. A communal terrace is provided on the fifth floor and 
basement car parking. 

Net Lettable Area:
116,732 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£3.4 million pa

ERV:
£3.85 million pa

Vacancy  
(as % of floor area):
0%

Key Tenant: Starbucks, Fiserv, Spaces, Mattel and Orange Business Services.

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

30 Page 42



Asset Strategy Summary

A strategic long-term regeneration investment for the Council, Elmsleigh Centre is also a focal 
point at the heart of the community. An opportunity to maximise potential on multiple levels 
– housing, work, communications, community, leisure, retail – it is key to the prosperity of 
Staines. The Council is committed to promote and improve Staines as a thriving centre.

Asset Profile:  
Elmsleigh Shopping Centre, Staines

Asset Details

Sector: 
Retail

Tenure: 
Freehold

Independent Valuation:
£27.6 million  
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£39.325 million 
(February 2020)

Property 
Description:

The Elmsleigh Shopping Centre is a modern (refurbished in 2007), covered 
shopping mall fronting the High Street and with access at the rear to Friends 
Walk and bus station.  Adjoining the Centre is a multi-storey car park. The 
freehold was purchased by Spelthorne in February 2020 and in January 2021 
105-107 High Street was acquired. The asset also includes 1-6 Friends Walk, 
77 High Street, 91-93 High Street, 101-103 High Street, and Tothill multi-storey 
car park. The shopping centre and adjacent premises currently present 51 
separate retailers plus additional mall kiosks and the Centre is anchored by 
Primark and Matalan.

Net Lettable Area: 
253,767 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£3.13 million pa

ERV:
£3.40 million pa

Vacancy  
(as % of floor area):
4.79%

Key Tenant: Deichmann, Matalan, Primark, M&S, H&M, New Look, and others

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

31Page 43



Asset Strategy Summary

To maximise the income in the short term by re-letting the part 4th floor until 2023. In the 
medium term there is the potential to redevelop the site in conjunction with other property 
assets owned by the Council nearby such as Tothill Car park.  

Asset Profile:  
Communications House, South Street, Staines

Asset Details

Sector: 
Office

Tenure: 
Freehold

Independent Valuation:
£14.70 million 
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£11.70 million 
(July 2018)

Property 
Description:

The property is located in Staines town centre adjacent to the Tothill car park 
and the Elmsleigh Shopping Centre. Constructed in 1981 and refurbished 
internally in 2013 it provides office accommodation over ground and five 
upper floors. The building is an ‘L’ shaped, brick construction with a flat roof. 
Currently let on short term leases which would allow a redevelopment scheme 
to commence in 2023.  

Net Lettable Area:
48,194 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£1.16 million pa

ERV:
£1.25 million pa

Vacancy (as % of floor 
area):
6.49%

Key Tenant:
Samsung Electronics (UK) Ltd, Pros Europe Ltd, Anglo Gold Ashanti 
Holdings Plc, Mathison & Macara LLP.

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

32 Page 44



Asset Strategy Summary

To maintain short/medium term income by renewing leases if possible or re-letting at rents in 
excess of rental value. The longer-term strategy is to redevelop the site to meet the housing 
needs of the borough. 

Asset Profile:  
The Summit Centre, Sunbury

Asset Details

Sector: 
Light Industrial/Office

Tenure: 
Freehold

Independent Valuation:
£12.7 million 
(31 March 2021)

Purchase Price:
£13.79 million  
(September 2019)

Property 
Description:

The site of 4.47 acres includes a mix of industrial and office accommodation 
constructed during the 1970’s and 1980’s. Units 3 & 4 provide a 2 a storey 
office and R&D space over 56,412 sq.ft. 33 Hanworth Road provides 1970’s 
style office accommodation with a warehouse to the rear totalling 10,627 sq.ft. 
There is a terrace of 6, small industrial units ranging in size from 997 to 1,196 
sq.ft.

Net Lettable Area:
73,398 sq.ft

Passing rent:
£1.02 million pa

ERV:
£1.10 million pa

Vacancy (as % of floor 
area):
0%

Key Tenant:
Johnson Controls/ADT Fire and Security plc, SSS Gears, Sandrair 
International Ltd, LP Custom Clearance. 

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

33Page 45



Glossary

Capital Growth - The increase in value of the property over time also 
known as capital appreciation. It can be calculated with reference to the 
previous valuation or since purchase. 

Capital Return – In the context of the report this is the capital value 
growth shows the capital appreciation since the date of purchase.

Capital Value - This is also known as the property’s market value. The 
market value is defined by the International Valuation Standards Council 
‘IVSC’ and the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors to mean ‘the 
estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of 
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length 
transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted 
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. The IVSC makes it clear 
that a “willing seller” is simply a seller motivated to sell at the best price 
obtainable on the valuation date. 

Estimated Rental Value (ERV) - The estimated annual rent that would 
be achieved if the floor space was to be re-let in the open market at the 
valuation date. The rental value is determined by Carter Jonas, the Council’s 
appointed valuers. 

Equivalent yield - The internal rate of return of the cashflow from the 
property, assuming a rise to ERV (estimated rental value) at the next review 
but with no further rental growth. 

Grade A – This refers to the quality of the office space. A Grade A building 
is the highest quality of building, it is typically newly constructed or 
substantially redeveloped. It is considered the best in class in terms of 
aesthetics, standard of finishes, state of the art systems and location.

Gross/Net Rental Income – The actual rent received or receivable either 
including or excluding revenue costs such as marketing costs, letting fees, 
void costs. 

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

34 Page 46



Income Yield/Net Initial yield – The annual passing rent less costs as a 
percentage of the capital value, after adding notional purchaser’s costs. In 
the report the income yield has been calculated at the valuation date.  

Investment cover – The ratio of net income received by the Council to the 
total payable in loan repayments and interest in the financial year.  

Lot size – The capital value of the property.

Net Asset Value – The full value of all the properties owned by Spelthorne 
Borough Council.

Passing rent – The contracted rent or gross rent less any ground rent 
payable under the lease over a 12 month period.

Quarter Day – The dates specified under the lease when the rents 
are payable. The English quarter days are 25th March, 24th June, 29th 
September and 25th December.

Rent free period – A period of time during the lease when the tenant does 
not have to pay rent. Typically granted to a tenant as an incentive to enter 
into a lease.

Reversionary Lease – A lease which is granted today but has a future term 
commencement date. They are granted to extend a tenant’s lease.

Vacancy rate – The amount of space within a property which is currently 
empty and not generating rent as a percentage of the whole property 
or portfolio. The rate can be expressed a percentage of floor area or as a 
percentage of the estimated rental value. 

Void – A period when the property is vacant and is not generating any rent. 

Spelthorne Borough Council Property Fund  Asset Managers Annual Report to 31 March 2021

35Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Version: 1, Last saved: 30/07/21 17:34 

Development Sub-Committee  

 

9
th

 August 2021 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 Laleham Park is a valuable leisure asset and a number of proposals have 
been made over recent years to enhance its amenity, although none of these 
have proved economically viable.  The Pavilion building has been derelict 
since 2001 and has, over recent years, been subject to antisocial behaviour. 

 

1.2 In February 2019 Cabinet approved a budget of £250,000 for the demolition 
of the existing pavilion and toilet building and construction of a new WC block 

Title Laleham Park Pavilion – Proposed Demolition of Pavilion and 
WC Block 

Purpose of the report To make a decision 

 

Report Author Jeremy Gidman, Asset Manager 

Ward(s) Affected Laleham and Shepperton Green 

Riverside and Laleham 

 

Exempt No     

Exemption Reason N/A  

Corporate Priority Economic Development 

Clean and Safe Environment 

 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

 

Approve the demolition of Laleham Park Pavilion and WC 
amenity block in September /October 2021. 

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

Laleham Park Pavilion has been derelict since 2001 and has, 
over recent years, been subject to anti-social behaviour.  
Planning consent has been obtained for the demolition of the 
Pavilion and toilet block, and the re-development of the WC block 
with the Pavilion site left as hard standing for short term amenity 
use.  It is recommended to proceed with demolition only at this 
stage, in order to meet specific timescales for removal of bats 
during nesting season in September/October. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



 
 

with hardstanding on the former pavilion to enable an outside catering facility.  
The view was taken that this would provide a short-term solution to the 
antisocial behaviour and provide amenity while an appropriate use for the 
former pavilion site was established. 

1.3 The project has been overseen by the Assets team with day to day project 
management via the Building Management team. There have been two 
principal issues which have delayed the timing of this project:- 

(a) The presence of bats roosting in the pavilion which has required 
ecological reports and the application for a re-roosting licence from 
Natural England.  The periods during which re-roosting may take place 
are typically March/April and September/October. 

(b) Environment Agency objections to the building design due to perceived 
flood risk.  In total, there have been four sets of consultation with the EA 
during the planning application process in order to reach their ultimate 
agreement.  However, the conditions required by the LPA and the EA 
have included a number of flood mitigation measures which were not 
envisaged at the outset as the EA subsequently amended its River 
Thames flood risk model for the area. 

1.4 Planning permission was obtained in October 2020 and the contract for 
demolition has been successfully tendered.  The main contract for the new 
development was tendered at the beginning of this year, and from eight 
contractors, we received three submitted tenders.  The lowest price tendered 
for the redevelopment of the project was £274,552 (versus a pro-rata budget 
cost for redevelopment costs of £120,000) which means that the projected 
cost for the whole project is now £336,583, significantly higher than the 
approved budget. 

1.5 Since inception the project specification has taken on board Councillor 
requests for sustainable initiatives such as PIR lighting, the use of sustainable 
materials and provision of a water fountain.  The design also incorporates a 
small site office in place of the previous store, which can then offer a security 
provision or amenity use.  The project team has carried out a value 
engineering exercise, but there is a limit to reducing the projected costs 
meaningfully at this stage.  The main reasons identified for the increased 
costs are set out below:- 

(a) £23,395 – fees for planning, FRA, bat survey, etc. increased by £12,771 
due extra conditions imposed by LPA and EA. 

(b) £28,369 – due to scope increase with the addition of site office (12m2) 
within the toilet block  

(c) £5,750 – LPA sustainability requirement 

(d) £16,669 – concrete ramp due to building height to meet EA 
requirements 

(e) £40,952 – flood resistant doors to meet EA requirements 

£115,135 

1.6 It is proposed that the Assets team revisit the building design to establish 
whether cost savings can be achieved, and also look at alternative options for 
a more holistic development of the Pavilion site on the basis that the WC 
block rebuild in isolation now appears expensive.  In the meantime it is 

Page 50



 
 

recommended that demolition of the pavilion and WC block takes place this 
autumn, to take advantage of the limited window for re-roosting the bats 
present in the Pavilion during nesting season. 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 The intention to deliver a new amenity provision at Laleham Park remains in 
place.  There is clear demand from residents for additional amenity and the 
Assets team receive regular expressions of interest from members of the 
public who can offer mobile catering and other business proposals which 
would benefit the wider community.   With the benefit of the new Community 
Assets Letting Policy, Council officers are now better placed to evaluate 
potential interest against wider community needs.  

2.2 However, the unexpected escalation in costs means that building the 
proposed toilet block in isolation will not represent good value to the Council 
and residents.  A separate report will follow in due course setting out the 
Council’s proposals for re-visiting the design, once a through review of 
options has been finalised and ward Councillors have been fully consulted. 

2.3 The immediate options available are to either demolish the WC block now, or 
to wait until a refined scheme has been approved before proceeding with 
demolition and rebuilding of the toilet block.  The third option is to not take 
forwards the proposals at all. 

2.4 By demolishing the WC block in the autumn, the Council will ensure that anti-
social behaviour is minimised and that further deterioration of the WC block 
and Pavilion does take place, thereby avoiding any health and safety 
concerns.  This option will also ensure that construction works to rebuild the 
WC block can proceed more quickly once a revised scheme and Committee 
decision has been approved. The toilet block has been non-operational since 
March this year, but since closure we have not received any complaints from 
members of the public which further points to the limited amenity provided by 
the WC facility in isolation.  

2.5 Demolition in the short term will also enable the site to be delivered with 
hardstanding ready for potentially interested parties to deliver amenity through 
mobile catering projects or similar by early next year. 

2.6 If the Council decides not to demolish now, then the property will potentially 
encourage further anti-social behaviour over the winter months.  Due to the 
presence of bats, the earliest timeframe for demolition would be March/April 
2022 which will further delay the delivery of hardstanding for a mobile catering 
project. 

2.7 If the decision is made to not proceed with the plans at all, then the Council 
could either re-open the WC block or simply retain the property as a non-
operational asset. The latter is not considered a viable long term option. 

2.8 Based on the above, it is recommended that the WC block demolition takes 
place this autumn as this will reduce further delays to the original programme. 

3. Financial implications 

3.1 There is an approved budget within the capital programme for 2021/22 of 
£250,000 for Laleham park Upgrade. The cost of taking forward the 
demolition is approximately £32,000 including replacement hardstanding, and 
costs incurred to date are c £18,000. The WC is currently non-operational, 

Page 51



 
 

and a cost of c £8,500 would be required to re-connect the electricity supply 
from the substation. 

3.2 Due to current cost inflation, there is a further case for proceeding with 
demolition now to avoid the risk of increases in project costs for this element.  
It is accepted that costs may increase further in the wider redevelopment 
project, but this is viewed as an acceptable risk. 

4. Other considerations 

4.1 It is proposed that the relevant ward councillors are consulted on the 
demolition and potential re-design of the WC block, assuming that Committee 
members are in agreement to proceed with demolition. 

5. Equality and Diversity 

5.1 The aspiration to provide enhanced amenity at Laleham Park will benefit the 
wider community, and will showcase an attractive riverside location in the 
Borough. 

6. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

6.1 The proposed WC block has been designed to include sustainable initiatives, 
as highlighted above, and these will be prioritised in redesign options. 

7. Timetable for implementation 

7.1 If Committee members are in agreement, then it is proposed that the bats are 
re-roosted in mid to late September, with demolition works commencing in 
October on the basis of a three week programme.  

 
Background papers: There are none. 
 
Appendices: N/A 
 

Page 52



 

 
Version: 1.1, Last saved: 30/07/21 17:09 

Development Sub-Committee   

 

9
th

 August 2021 

Title Investment & Regeneration Portfolio - Annual Business Plans 

Purpose of the report To make a decision 

Report Author Jeremy Gidman, Asset Manager 

Ward(s) Affected N/A 

Exempt No for the report and Appendix A but yes for Appendix B 

Exemption Reason Appendix B  contains exempt information within the meaning of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985 and by the Local Government (Access to information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 Paragraph 3 – Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information) and in all the circumstances of 
the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
because, disclosure to the public would prejudice the financial 
position of the authority in any lease, contract or other type of 
negotiation with the tenant or developer, who could then know the 
position of the Council.   

Corporate Priority Financial Sustainability 

 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

 

Approve the proposed template for the annual business plans 
which are being produced for all assets in the Investment & 
Regeneration portfolios. 

 

To note the proposed timescale of completion of this project by 
20th August subject to Committee being comfortable with the 
format of the reports. 

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

The business plans will provide a focus on maintaining and 
growing income, together with the prioritisation of asset 
management initiatives.  Their recommendations will also assist 
budget forecasting. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 It is proposed that officers in the Assets team prepare annual business plans 
in order to assist financial forecasting and asset management of the 
Investment and Regeneration portfolios. 

1.2 In previous years, the more complex multi-let assets in the Brockton portfolio 
(Porter Building, Charter Building and Thames Tower) were reviewed 
annually by an external asset manager, Landid to provide a business plan 
and budget forecast. 

1.3 Following the termination of the Landid contract, there is now the opportunity 
to improve upon the business plan process across the entire portfolio and to 
demonstrate to stakeholders that the Council has suitable expertise and 
resourcing to manage a large commercial property portfolio. 

1.4 The business plans will identify current and future performance of the assets 
against their sector benchmark.  They will also set out forecast income and 
expenditure forecasts over a five year period. 

1.5 Going forwards, the plans will also provide a helpful tool in risk management, 
by highlighting potential gaps in income and future expenditure, set against 
the financial status of all tenants. 

1.6 The plans will also provide an opportunity to identify longer term development 
opportunities where these exist, in order to enhance capital value and 
liquidity.   

1.7 Attached at Appendix A is a copy of a template report being proposed for one 
of the Investment properties which contains all the information which can be 
put in the public domain.  The intention is to produce a report for each asset 
with a shorter summary report which focuses on the deliverable strategy for 
the portfolios as a whole.  Confidential Appendix B contains the full financial 
information and in exempt for the reasons set out at the top of this report.   

 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 The preferred option is to proceed with the proposed business plans once 
Committee is comfortable with the content.  These plans are being produced 
using Argus Enterprise which is a leading investment appraisal platform which 
the Assets team have available to them.  Appropriate resources are available 
within the Assets team, and it is sensible for the relevant property managers 
to take ownership of this project rather than outsourcing. 

2.2 The alternative option is not to prepare these business plans, which would 
mean managing the portfolio without a clearly defined strategy.  This is not a 
realistic option now that the portfolio has grown to its current size. 

 

3. Financial implications 

Page 54



 
 

3.1 The business plans are being prepared by the Assets team based upon input 
from professional advisers where required.  There is no additional budget 
required for this project. 

 

4. Other considerations 

Due to the sensitive nature of the financial information contained within the 
reports, it is suggested that the summary report (Appendix A) becomes a 
public facing document with the full reports appropriately redacted and made 
available if requested. 

5. Equality and Diversity 

5.1 The business plans are an opportunity to assess the performance of the 
assets at a financial and physical level, and to ensure that issues such as 
accessibility are addressed.  By focusing on the preservation and growth of 
income receipts, the portfolio business plans will ensure that valuable revenue 
support remains available for services in the borough that meet the Council’s 
policies on equality and diversity.  

 

6. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

6.1 Environmental and Social Governance initiatives are being given due 
consideration in the individual plans, and these are highlighted in the template 
report. 

 

7. Timetable for implementation 

7.1 The reports are being prepared at the present time and, subject to the 
approval of the proposed format by the Development Sub-Committee, will be 
finalised by the 31st August. 

 
Background papers:  
 
There are none. 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Template Asset Business Plan for World Business Centre 4 (Financial 
Year 2021/2022) 
Appendix B – full Asset Business Plan for World Business Centre 4 (Financial Year 
2021/2022) – Confidential  

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Property Name: Year:

Freeholder: Portfolio:

Financial Year 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026
3 Yr 

Average

5 Year 

Average

£0 £0

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0% 0%

- - - - -

£603,000 £1,022,000 £1,503,000 £1,998,000 £2,509,000 £1,042,667 £1,527,000

1 Jul-21 - £0 Y 100%

2 Dec-21 N

3 Nov-22 £0 N 25%

4 £0 0%

5 £0 0%

Target Date
Estimated 

Cost £

Capital Value 

Impact

Base case: 

Inc / Not 

inc 

Probability

%

1 Mar-22 £0 £0 N 20%

2 £0 0%

3 £0 0%

1 Mar-22 £0 N 10%

2 Mar-22 £0 £0 N 20%

3 £0 0%

4 £0 0%

5 £0 0%

Financial Year 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

Market Rent psf £26.50 £26.50 £26.65 £26.82 £27.21 £27.67

Market Rent pa £2,365,973 £2,365,973 £2,379,443 £2,394,823 £2,429,147 £2,470,706

Rental Growth 0.57% 0.65% 1.43% 1.71% 1.48%

KEY ISSUE:

 ASSET BUSINESS PLAN

World Business Centre 4, Newall Road, Heathrow 2021/2022

Spelthorne Borough Council Investment

FUTURE PERFORMANCE - KEY PROPERTY DATA

Impact on 

Income £

Capital Value 

Impact

Base case: 

Included / 

Not 

included 

Probability 

%

Complete a review of the glazing system to ensure that there are no latent defects 

or underlying health and safety issues

Explore potential to re-structure Amadeus lease on terms to be agreed

Predicted Net Rental Income pa

Predicted Vacancy Rate 

Rent Variance from Base Case

Sinking Fund Balance

Key Asset Management Initiatives (in rank order) Target date

Threats (in rank order) Target date
Impact on 

Income £

Capital Value 

Impact

Probability 

%

Tenant default due to extended impact of Covid on aviation industry 

Tenant sublets 2nd floor at reduced rent

Base case: 

Inc / Not 

inc 

Key ESG Initiatives (in rank order)

Encourage installation of further electric charging points by tenant.

Establish reasons for glazing failure through an independent report.  

RECOMMENDATION

Asset Management Strategy for Next 12 Months

World Business Centre 4 is a modern office building which is entirely let to Amadeus IT Services UK Limited with  Amadeus IT Group S.A. as surety.  

The tenant remains committed to the building but has expressed interest in subletting a surplus floor and has carried out minor works to the reception and 

common parts to enable this.   In the short term it is important that we understand the reasons for multiple glazing panels failing over the last 24 months, 

so it is recommended that a report is commissioned to ensure no health and safety issues.  We shall maintain good relationships with the tenant in order 

to gauge appetite for a lease extension as this will be important to preserve income and future value.

1 of 3 30/07/2021

Page 57



Property Name: Year:

Freeholder: Portfolio:

BREEAM Rating
Service 

Charge pa
Rateable Value

EPC Rating
Service 

Charge psf

Flood Risk

Service 

Charge 

Shortfall

£46,000,000 £ psf £515

£24,648,200 Valuation Date 26/09/2020

Date of acquisition Sep-17 £47,248,000 Tenancy

Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21

Net Income
£0 £0 £0 £0 £ pa

% Primary 

Use

% Secondary 

Use

% Car Park 

Use
% Turnover

Initial Yield 4.87% 4.90% 4.90% 5.00% Passing Rent £2,457,623 100% 0% 0% 0%

Equivalent Yield 4.90% 4.74% 4.90% Market Rent £2,370,000 100% 0% 0% 0%

Year End Valuation £47,000,000 £45,800,000 £46,000,000 100%

Floor Area 89,282 sq ft 8,294 sq m Notes on Development:

Site Area 2.05 acres 0.83 hectares

Rent free period

Rent commencement date

Construction Cost

Date of Last Refurb

No of Parking Spaces

Risk of Default

Company 

Registration 

No:

2020 2021
In Arrears  

Yes/No

Guarantor / 

Deposit

2276684 3A1 3A2 No Yes

 ASSET BUSINESS PLAN
World Business Centre 4, Newall Road, Heathrow 2021/2022

Spelthorne Borough Council Investment

Very Good N/A £1,480,000

TBC N/A

Very Low Risk N/A

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS

SubSector: South East Offices Region: Thames Valley / Western Corridor

Tenure: Freehold / Long Leasehold Head Lease Details: 986 years from 7 July 2017

Property Details Tenancy Details

Acquisition Price 15 year lease expiring 28 November 2032

Weighted average unexpired term (by income) 11.67 years

Current Valuation

Achievable Sale Price as % of current 

valuation 
100.00%

% Owned 100.00% Insurance Valuation

% of Total Portfolio by Value

% of Fund by Value

4.78%

5.07%

Physical Property Details Development Appraisal - Approved Base Case

Building Age 2017
Start Date

PC date Only complete if a development is approved or 

in progress

Specification 

Grade A specification including open plan floor plates, raised 

floors, suspended ceilings, carpet tiling, LG7 compliant lighting, 

air conditioning.  A full height central atrium allows natural light to 

all floors.
Site Price

141 spaces (1:633 sq ft) Estimated Relative Out-performance

Condition Very good.

Professional fees

Finance Costs

Total Costs

N/A Costs incurred to date

Asset Strengths Asset Weaknesses

Located immediately north of the Northern Perimeter Road and adjacent to the A4 Bath 

Road, providing excellent access to the M4 and M25 motorways

Opportunities Threats
Heathrow may further benefit from Crossrail linking West London to East London Brexit uncertainty and the impact of Covid-19 could cause a scale back in tenant operations in the 

UK (this is their main office outside of their headquarters in Madrid)

Fully let to single tenant on full repairing lease with 11.67 years unexpired lease term Lack of amenities in the vicinity; location dominated by office use (plus airport related car parking 

and hotels), therefore offering limited amenities for the benefit of the staff

New standalone Grade A office completed in 2017 Recent letting activity in the locality has focused on smaller floor plates within multi-let office 

buildings

OCCUPIER DEFAULT RISK
Tenants Details D&B Rating  Payment History

Tenants Name Payment timing Low / Medium / High

Global travel may recover and improve the tenant's financial position Increased local market competition with other schemes coming forwards providing comparable 

space in terms of quality leading to supply exceeding demand.

The parent company is listed on the Spanish stock market and is headquartered in Madrid.  The 

share price fell with Covid-19 impact which may impact future space decisions

Amadeus IT Services UK Limited On time Low

Building Occupancy

Property Photo Location Plan

2 of 3 30/07/2021

Page 58



Property Name: Year:

Freeholder: Portfolio:

2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026
3 Year 

Average

 5 Year 

Average

-0.1% 0.9% 1.7% 1.9% 1.7% 0.9% 1.2%

0.6% 0.6% 1.4% 1.7% 1.5% 0.9% 1.2%

£26.50 £26.65 £26.82 £27.21 £27.67 £26.66 £26.97

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0.00 £0.00

2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026
3 Year 

Average

 5 Year 

Average

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£15,000 £0 £0 £0 £0 £5,000 £3,000

Financial Year 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026  3 Year Average
 5 Year 

Average

Net Income £ £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Rental Value £ £2,370,000 £2,365,973 £2,379,443 £2,394,823 £2,429,147 £2,470,706 £2,380,079 £2,408,018

Rental Value Growth 0.65% 1.43% 1.71% 1.48% 0.00% 1% 1.05%

Sector Benchmark 0.91% 1.74% 1.89% 1.67% 0.00% 2% 1.24%

Relative Performance -0.26% -0.30% -0.17% -0.19% 0.00% -0.25% -0.19%

Capital Value £46,000,000 £44,145,680 £43,541,057 £43,440,975 £43,435,411 £43,435,411 £43,709,237 £43,599,707

Capital Value Growth -4.03% -1.37% -0.23% -0.01% 0.00% -1.88% -1.13%

Sector Benchmark -1.27% 0.63% 1.13% 0.90% 0.00% 0.16% 0.28%

Relative Outperformance -2.76% -2.00% -1.36% -0.91% 0.00% -2.04% -1.41%

£212,000 £419,000 £481,000 £495,000 £511,000 £370,667 £423,600

£15,000 £0 £0 £0 £0 £5,000 £3,000

£603,000 £1,022,000 £1,503,000 £1,998,000 £2,509,000 £1,042,667 £1,359,455

 ASSET BUSINESS PLAN

Rental Growth Rates - FY

REFL Sector Forecast 

World Business Centre 4, Newall Road, Heathrow 2021/2022

Investment

Future Performance Assumptions

Spelthorne Borough Council

Asset Manager's Summary

The property is a modern, self contained office headquarters building in a prominent location close to Heathrow Airport.  It provides Grade A office accommodation and is let to a 

secure covenant with surety for a term certain of just under 12 years.  Amadeus have expressed a desire to sublet one of their floors (c 20,000 sq ft) which is currently surprlus to 

requirements, and agents are marketing the space.  A number of snagging issues following practical completion have now been rectified, including water ingress to the basement 

car park and replacement of glazing panels due to suspected Nickel Sulphide Inclusion (NSI).  However, the fact that over 10 panels have now failed warrants further investigation 

and we are seeking to appoint an independent consultant to provide a review of the glazing on the building to ensure that there are no safety issues.

Adjusted Asset Forecast

Headline Rent psf 

Net Income pa

Increase / Shortfall from Contractual 

Position

RENT

The passing rent was set in 2017 and equates to £27.50 per sq ft.  The most recent letting at WBC2 was in January 2020 at £26 per sq ft for a floor 

comprising 7,200 sq ft.  Rental values for comparable office accommodation in the locality range from £22.50 per sq ft to £26 per sq ft.   There is 

currently no office accommodation under construction in Heathrow and Uxbridge but 1.1m sq ft of office space is in the development pipeline, which 

equates to 16% of total stock.  

Irrecoverable Revenue Expenditure

Future Performance Analysis Summary
 Our base case assumptions are that the tenant remains operational and continues to pay the rent for the duration of the lease.  No void costs or capex are therefore incurred 

during the model.  

Sinking Fund Utilised

Sinking Fund Balance

CAPITAL 

EXPENDITURE

The building is less than three years old and is let to a single occupier on a full repairing and insuring lease.  There is no anticipated capital 

expenditure.  A report on the reasons for 10+ glazing panels failing since practical completion is to be commissioned, with a budget cost of £10,000.  

There will be some consultancy fees payable to C&W who have been monitoring completion of snagging works, estimate £5,000.

Finanacial Year

Capital Expenditure

Sinking Fund Allocation

3 of 3 30/07/2021

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Annual Report (Investments)
	ASSETS ANNUAL REPORT 2021-v5
	1	Introduction
	2	Property Market Overview
	3	Portfolio Valuation
	4	Key Performance Indicators
	5	Investment Activity
	6	Portfolio Activity - Investment Portfolio
	7	Portfolio Activity - Regeneration Portfolio 
	Asset Profile: 
BP Campus, Sunbury Business Park, Sunbury
	Asset Profile: 
12 Hammersmith Grove, Hammersmith, London
	Asset Profile: 
3 Roundwood Avenue, Stockley Park
	Asset Profile: 
World Business Centre 4, Newall Road, Heathrow Airport 
	Asset Profile: 
Elmbrook House, 18-19 Station Road, Sunbury-on-Thames
	Asset Profile: 
Charter Building, Uxbridge
	Asset Profile: 
Thames Tower, Reading
	Asset Profile: 
The Porter Building, Slough
	Asset Profile: 
Elmsleigh Shopping Centre, Staines
	Asset Profile: 
Communications House, South Street, Staines
	Asset Profile: 
The Summit Centre, Sunbury
	Glossary


	6 Laleham Pavillion
	7 Investment & Regeneration Portfolio - Annual Business Plans
	Business Plan - WBC4  FINAL Appendix A
	Business Plan - WBC4  FINAL Appendix B

	10 World Business Centre 4, Heathrow - Annual Business Plan 2021/22
	Business Plan - WBC4  FINAL


